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Corporate Governance
Framework

The objective of the Namibia Airports
Company (NAC), as defined in the Airports
Company Act, 1998 (Act 25 of 1998) is “the
acquisition, establishment, development,
provision, maintenance, management,
control or operation, in accordance with
sound generally accepted business
principles, of any aerodrome, or any facility
or service, including a relevant activity at
any aerodrome normally related to the
functioning of an aerodrome.”
Section 1 of the Act defines a “relevant
activity” as “provision at a Company
aerodrome of any service or facility for
the purposes of: (a) the arrival, surface
movement, parking or departure of aircraft;
(b) the servicing of aircraft, including the
supply of fuel and lubricants; and (c) the
handling of aircraft passengers, baggage or
cargo on the premises of such aerodrome,
including the transfer of such passengers,
baggage or cargo to and from an aircraft.
The Company owns and manages the
following airports:
- Eros Airport
- Hosea Kutako International Airport
- Katima Mulilo Airport
- Keetmanshoop Airport
- Lüderitz Airport
- Ondangwa Airport
- Rundu Airport
- Walvis Bay Airport

VISION

To be a world-class service provider in
airport operations and management.

MISSION

We develop and manage airports on sound
business principles with due considerations
to the best interest of our stakeholders.

CORE VALUES
• Integrity
We conduct ourselves in an honest,
ethical, transparent, consistent and fair
manner in all our activities.
• Accountability
We take responsibility for all our actions.
• Teamwork
We encourage and value the contribution
of our team members at all levels in
pursuit of excellence.

Corporate Governance
Statement

Namibia Airports Company (NAC) Ltd. is
committed to ensuring that its corporate
governance processes conform to
international best practice. The raison
d’être for the Company is to secure the
development and management of airports,
which are comparable to the most effective
airport operators globally. The Company
is duly cognisant of the need for decisions
to be ethically sound but also for their
compliance with the relevant regulatory
regime. NAC is registered as a public
Company in terms of the Companies Act
(No. 61 of 1973) and is listed as a public
entity or state owned enterprise in terms of
the State Owned Enterprise Act (No. 2 of
2006).
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Board of Directors

The Company’s control is vested with
the board of directors. It constitutes of a
non-executive Chairman and non-executive
directors appointed by the shareholding
Minister. The board meets at least four
times a year to consider not only operational
and issues emanating from management,
but also to consider policy issues.
The constitution of the board evidences
the requisite pool of expertise. It is vital to
state that the structure and operation of
the board contains the relevant checks and
balances. Board members have unfettered
access to Company information via the
Company Secretary. The board may also
solicit external professional advice where
necessary.
According to the Company’s Articles of
Association, one third of the directors
shall retire at the Annual General Meeting.
However, the said directors may be
reappointed.

Board Committees

The board has established four permanent
committees, which are tasked with
advising the board of directors on issues
of importance relating to the Company’s
sphere of operation. The Chief Executive
Officer and other members of corporate
management attend meetings of the board
committees upon invitation, whilst the
Company Secretary provides secretarial
services to all committees.

Audit Committee

The committee met numerous times during
the period under review. The mandate
of the committee is to assist the board
in discharging its duties in relation to the
safeguarding of assets, the operation of
an adequate system of internal control
and the preparation of accurate financial
reporting and statements in compliance
with all applicable legal and regulatory
requirements and accounting standards.
The audit committee does not perform
any management functions or assume
any management responsibilities. The
governance mandate requires oversight
to guarantee the implementation and
indiscriminate compliance with the
Company’s code of ethics.
The internal and external auditors upon
invitation attend committee meetings. The
external auditors are appointed at the
Annual General Meeting upon the board’s
recommendation as duly advised by the
audit committee.

Remuneration Committee

This committee met numerous times during
the period under review. The primary
objective of the committee is to assist the
board in discharging its duties relating
to human capital and remuneration. In
particular, it is required to recommend an
appropriate remuneration policy for the
Company as well as appropriate measures
to ensure the Company has sufficient
remuneration levels to attract, retain
and motivate management and staff. In

accordance with international best practice,
the committee also strives to secure the
Company’s status as an efficient and
effective corporate entity.
The responsibility to manage the Company
is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer.
The daily operations of the Company are
the responsibility of corporate management,
which includes the Chief Executive Officer
and Heads of the departments.
Apart from assisting the board of directors,
the Company Secretary reports to the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman
administratively and functionally. The
Company is cognisant of the need to
comply with the principles of good corporate
governance in terms of the King Report and
the State Owned Enterprises Act No. 2 of
2006.
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MESSAGE FROM THE

Chairperson
INTRODUCTION
Since its establishment in 1998 and in
line with the stakeholder’s mandate and
the Airports Company Act, Act No. 25 of
1998, the NAC continues to facilitate air
transportation through airport development.
We remain committed to providing the best
possible service and manage the eight
airports entrusted to us in accordance
with best practice and good corporate
governance.
I am pleased to report that NAC recorded
a successful year and that the company
improved on its financial results compared
to the previous year. As a company, we
are continuously seeking opportunities
to diversify the business to improve its
financial sustainability. I consider it the
Board’s duty to ensure that we are creating
real and tangible value for our shareholder.
Strategic Focus
As mentioned in previous reports, NAC
embarked on a strategic plan (2003-2018)
with the following five strategic goals:
1. Traffic Concentration
2.	Stringent Infrastructure Provision
3. Operational Improvement
4. Business Development
5. Organisation and Communication
The following projects are currently
underway at our airports:
• The construction of the new modern
passenger terminal at Ondangwa Airport,
• Construction of the new enlarged
passenger terminal at Walvis Bay Airport,
• Construction of the new fire station at
Eros Airport,
• Polymer perimeter fencing at Walvis Bay
and Lüderitz Airports.
The following projects are envisaged for the
2013/2014 financial year and beyond:
• Extension of the passenger terminal at
Hosea Kutako International Airport,

HKIA, to ease flow of passengers,
• The provision of fire tenders for all our
airports to comply with International Civil
Aviation Organisation (ICAO)
requirements,
• Construction of NAC’s head quarters,
• Construction of a new passenger
terminal and a second runway at HKIA,
which complies with ICAO requirements.
Dividends
Although the Company made a profit, the
board has resolved not to declare any
dividends for the year under review. This
will result in the funds being utilised for the
capital expenditure on planned projects
instead of borrowing from the market.
Gratitude
On behalf of the board, I would like to
thank all the staff of NAC together with
the management team for the their efforts
during the financial year under review. We
are pleased with the performance of the
Company. The Company has stepped up
efforts to meet a new realm of challenges
and opportunities under the leadership of
Acting Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Tamer
El-Kallawi.
I would also like to thank fellow board
members for their steadfast commitment to
the continued growth of NAC, dedication,
support and guidance.
Lastly, I want to express my appreciation
towards the Government represented
by Honourable Erkki Nghimtina and all
stakeholders in the Company for your
continued support.

N. N. Katonyala
Chairperson
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T. S. El-Kallawi

Acting Chief Executive Officer

CEO’s Review

Once again, Namibia Airports Company has delivered commendable operational and financial
results. The NAC achieved major milestones during the period under review despite effects
of the global recession.
For a safe operation and a state of the art service, it is essential that an infrastructure be
provided, which has the right capacity and quality to meet the demand.
On the foregoing, the NAC is committed to upgrading its airport infrastructure in order to
facilitate seamless travel and to enhance leisure travel. The Walvis Bay Airport fire station is
amongst the major capital projects completed in line with the strategic plan, aimed to enhance
aviation safety and to provide fire and rescue services. The facility has been built to fully
comply with standards required by the International Civil Aviation Organisation (ICAO).
A provision of N$70 million has been budgeted for upgrading the Walvis Bay Airport passenger
terminal. The new terminal will result in an increase in passenger movements from 50 to 250
per peak hour. This is a step closer to realising the vision of turning Walvis Bay Airport into
Namibia’s second international gateway for air transport.
Furthermore, the construction of a new passenger terminal at Ondangwa Airport at an
estimated N$75.3 million will elevate Ondangwa Airport into a global standard airport over the
next few years. The project, scheduled for completion in May 2014, will result in the terminal
handling 120 passengers per peak hour.
Given that the Ondangwa Airport catchment area is over 200 kilometres, this state of the art
amenity will be able to cater for the Oshana, Omusati, Ohangwena, Otjikoto and Kunene
regions. Through these endeavours, the NAC is significantly contributing to fostering
economic activities by encouraging international commerce and tourism as well as creating
employment.
It must be noted that the Company has changed its financial year-end from August to March
every year, resulting in the 2011/12 year consisting of (19) months for the period ending
31 March 2012. This resulted in a 28% decrease in revenue, which could be considered
a skewed representation of performance. Notwithstanding this, I am delighted to note that
the Company no longer has short-term borrowings, but instead makes use of its operating
income to fund the operating expenditures.
I wish to extend my gratitude to the management team for their unwavering support in
pursuing and attaining the organisation’s objectives. My profound appreciation also goes to
the board of directors.
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Board of

DIRECTORS

Ms. N. N. Katonyala
Chairperson

QUALIFICATIONS
Qualified Chartered Accountant;
registered member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Namibia
(ICAN), the Public Accountants and
Auditors Board (PAAB); Bachelor
Degree and Honours Degree in
Accounting, Advanced Diploma in
Auditing and a Certificate in Theory of
Accounting (CTA).
EXPERIENCE
Manages her own accounting firm
Katonyala & Co. Chartered Accountants
since 2009; draws her experience
from private and independent audits
of various State Owned Enterprises,
municipalities and private companies.
More than 12 years experience in
the auditing, accounting, taxation
and finance field where she served in
different capacities ranging from Audit
Supervisor; Audit Manager; Financial
Manager.

Ms. F. Aluteni
Director

QUALIFICATIONS
Masters Degree in Business
Administration; Advanced Diploma
(Human Resources Development);
National Diploma (Logistics) from
the Rand Afrikaans University of
Johannesburg.
EXPERIENCE
More than 15 years in the human
resources fraternity, which includes
amongst others General Manager:
Human Resources, Leo; Manager:
Human Resources at Standard Bank
Namibia; various senior positions in the
HR Department at TransNamib. She is a
member and Trustee on various Boards
of private companies.

Mr. M. C. Boshoff
Director

QUALIFICATIONS
B.Tech, Civil Engineering.
EXPERIENCE
Started his career as engineer in training
with VKE Consulting Engineers and
Burmeister & Partners; joined Brandberg
Construction during the end of 2002
as Surveyor and was promoted to Site
Agent in 2003 and Project Manager in
2004 to date.

12

Mr. T.S. El-Kallawi
Acting Chief Executive
Officer

Mr. M. C. wa Kamau
GM: Operations &
Engineering
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management

team

Mrs. T. Sem

GM: Commercial Services

Mrs. V. M. Kambarami
GM: Corporate & Legal
Services

Mr. O. Hamwele
GM: Human Resources
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Financial Overview
Revenue

Aeronautical revenue, which is the
company’s main revenue stream, is derived
from charging airport infrastructure tariffs.
The revenue comprises landing, passenger
and aircraft parking fees. Other revenue

generated from the company’s assets
comprises rental income, ground handling
fees, motor vehicle parking fees and interest
received on investments.

“Aeronautical revenue
comprises landing
fees, passenger fees
and aircraft parking
fees”

Major aeronautical revenue comparative analysis:

Other revenue comparative analysis:

During the year under review the company’s revenue decreased by 28.42%, from N$295 million to N$211 million. The decrease was mainly
due to the change in the financial year-end from August to March. This resulted in the prior year ending 31 March 2012 consisting of nineteen
months. Furthermore, focus was on the expansion of rental income by increasing space available for rent.
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Continued

Financial Overview

Expenditure
Major operating expenditure:

Total operating expenditure decreased
by 46.09% largely due to changes in the
financial year-end. Total administrative
expenses increased by 38.25% from N$23
million to N$32 million due to a higher bad
debt provision, consulting and legal fees
incurred as a result of the restructuring
in March 2012. Staff costs decreased by
55.87%.

Earnings Before Interest, Taxation,
Depreciation and Amortisation
(EBITDA)
EBITDA is now being used widely by
private capital firms when calculating the
price to pay for a business. EBITDA is
comparable to cash flow as it adds back

to net income the two major expenses
that have no impact on cash flows namely
depreciation and amortisation.

a measure of underlying cash flow (i.e.
stripping the volatile effects of changes in
working capital).

Interest and tax are excluded because
they include the effect of factors other than
the profitability of operations. Interest is a
result of the company’s financial structure.
Depreciation and amortisation reflect the
accounting treatment of past purchases
and are unrelated to future cash flows, and
future cash flows are what ultimately matter
to investors. EBITDA can also be regarded
as a measure of underlying cash flow which
is closely related to operating cash flow.
The difference is that operating cash flow
includes the effects of changes in working
capital. EBITDA can therefore be used as

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
and amortisation (EBITDA) has two main
uses:
- a comparison over time of the profitability
of a Company’s operations without the
potentially distorting effects of changes
in depreciation, amortisation, interest
and tax.
- to calculate EV/EBITDA, a valuation
ratio free of these distortions, allowing
fair comparisons of companies with
different capital structures.

EBITDA calculation:
							19 months ended
				31 March 2013			 31 March 2012
				
N$			
N$
Net profit for the year			

30 181 847			

(3 900 848)

Add back:
- Amortisation 				
-			
- Depreciation 				 49 748 014			
- Finance income 			 (12 250 002)			
- Finance costs 				
323 048			
- Taxation				 (20 200 008)			
EBITDA				 47 802 899			

71 241 324
18 371 280
447 404
(56 519 747)
29 639 414

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

The slight deterioration of EBITDA clearly indicates that even though revenue increased this was largely offset by a corresponding increase
in operational and administrative expenditure. This is mainly due to expensive emergence repairs and maintenance incurred for the airport
runways, taxiways and apron areas and the expansion and investment in human capital.
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Financial Position
As at 31 March 2013, the Company’s current ratio stood at N$10.43
worth of current assets for every N$1,00 of current debt (2012 N$6.04:N$1.00) indicating that the company has sufficient financial
resources to cover current liabilities.

Financing

The company has no long or short-term borrowings and makes use of
its operating income to fund operating expenditures.

Capital Expenditure

During the 2013 financial year the company undertook the following
major capital projects, which are still in progress:
- The expansion of the Eros fire station
- The expansion of the Ondangwa terminal building
- The expansion of the Walvis Bay terminal building.
							
		
Major capital expenditure is planned for the year ending 31 March
2014 as highlighted below:
- Acquisition of eleven fire fighting vehicles
- Completion of the construction of the new fire station at Eros
Airport
- Completion of the construction of polymer fencing for Walvis
Bay and Eros Airports
- Construction of Ondangwa terminal building.

Capital expenditure analysis:
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about THE company’s

Commercial Services
COMMERCIAL SERVICES
The Department of Commercial Services is responsible for
generating revenue from non-aeronautical revenue and determining
the aeronautical charges. Non-aeronautical revenue is generated
from services such as retail, property development, car parking,
advertising and concession fees. The ultimate aim of generating
non–aeronautical revenue is to make air travel more affordable as
well as to enhance passenger leisure experience at the airports.
During the period under review, the non-aeronautical revenue was
N$43 million.
1. Car parking service
The car parking service is an integral part of revenue generation
for non–aeronautical revenue. The service is divided into three
components comprised of public, long term and staff parking and is
managed through a pay park system managed by Namibia Airports
Company. The revenue generated at Hosea Kutako International
Airport stands at approximately N$300 000 per month whilst the
Eros Airport revenue is approximately N$28 000 per month. The
overall revenue generated by car park management for the period
under review amounts to N$5 million (2012: 7 million).
2. Retail
Retail activities being facilitated through the airports are aimed at
enhancing the travel leisure of passengers. The most common
retail facilities at an airport are mainly restaurants, curio shops,
bookstores and other related businesses that cater for the needs
of the travellers. The retail outlets recorded a revenue of N$20 273
659.29 for the period under review.
3. Property Development
Property development is one of the methodologies, which enables
public private partnership ventures to enhance airport development
for revenue generation with the ultimate aim of relieving pressure
on aeronautical charges. Revenue is mainly generated through the
land leases on car rental facilities, cargo warehouses and hangar
developments. The total amount generated through property
development amounts to N$4 524 185.20
4. Commission income
Retailers are expected to pay a monthly rental with a percentage of
turnover or alternatively the higher of the monthly rental rate or the
percentage of turnover. Concession fees are mainly generated from
duty free, restaurants and curio shops amongst others. The total
amount of revenue generated from concession fees amounted to
N$3 million (2012: N$3.5 million).
5. Advertisements
The advertising contract is managed through a concession awarded
to Alliance Media of which NAC receives monthly fees. The total
amount of revenue generated amounts to N$6 066 641.00.
6. Fuel Concession
The supply of fuel is mainly affected by international crude oil hence
the price thereof is volatile. The concession of fuel is generated
based on a throughput principle based on cents per litre. The period
under review generated an amount of N$1,3 million (2012: N$2
million).

7. Ground handling fees
The period under review recorded ground handling fees of N$2.8
million (2012: N$3.5 million), which was generated from the sole
ground handler, Air Namibia, for the period under review.

1.
			
Hosea Kutako
2012/2013
International
			
Airport
12 months
Statistics

2011/2012
12 months

Passenger Traffic: Arrivals		
International			
Regional 			
Domestic			

407 119 		385 926
144 663		138 499
239 978		224 606
22 478		 22 821

Passenger Traffic: Departures
International			
Regional 			
Domestic 			

395 692 		386 165
134 909 		130 492
235 975 		231 514
24 808 		 24 159

Total Passenger Traffic 		

802 811		772 091

Aircraft Movements: Arrivals		
International			
Regional 			
Domestic			

8 477		
1 831		
3 925		
2 721		

7 993
1 533
3 874
2 586

Aircraft Movements: Departures
International			
Regional 			
Domestic			

8 584		
1 646		
4 049		
2 889		

7 997
1 360
4 024
2 613

Total Aircraft Movements 		

17 061 		 15 990

Total passenger traffic recorded positive growth of 4% during
the period under review. This increment was due to growths of
5.5% recorded on total passenger arrivals as well as a slight
growth of 2.5% recorded on total passenger departures. While
both international and regional arrivals recorded positive growths,
domestic arrivals registered a decline of 1.5%.
Total aircraft movement registered increments of 6.7% during the
2012/13 financial year. The said growth was attributed to average
positive growths recorded on both total aircraft arrivals and
departures of 6.1% and 7.3% respectively. International movements
recorded the highest growth with an average growth of about 20%.
Regional movements recorded the least average growth of about
1%.
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Commercial Services continued

2. Eros Airport Statistics

2012/2013
2011/2012
12 months 12 months

3. WALVIS BAY AIRPORT
STATISTICS

2012/2013
2011/2012
12 months 12 months

Passenger Traffic: Arrivals			
46 111
International				 732
Regional 				
1 127
Domestic				
44 252

40 141
898
1 451
37 792

Passenger Traffic: Arrivals		
44 953
International				 198
Regional 				
30 672
Domestic			
14 083

43 852
152
34 866
8 834

Passenger Traffic: Departures		
International				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

44 960
919
1 484
42 557

37 948
674
1 267
36 007

Passenger Traffic: Departures
43 661
International				 271
Regional 				
31 117
Domestic 			
12 273

44 169
178
35 274
8 717

Total Passenger Traffic 		

91 071

78 089

Total Passenger Traffic 		

88 614

88 021

Aircraft Movements: Arrivals			
13 997
International				 214
Regional 				
1 055
Domestic				
12 728

13 129
246
1 077
11 806

Aircraft Movements: Arrivals 		
International			
Regional 				
Domestic			

2 294
25
845
1 424

2 555
31
1 257
1 267

Aircraft Movements: Departures		
14 130
International				 230
Regional 				
990
Domestic				
12 910

13 176
224
1 033
11 919

Aircraft Movements: Departures		
2 297
International				 34
Regional 				
859
Domestic				
1 404

2 556
32
1 268
1 256

Total Aircraft Movements 			

26 305

Total Aircraft Movements 		

5 111

28 127

Total passenger traffic registered a notable positive growth of 16.6%
during the 2012/13 financial year. Even though international and
regional arrivals recorded losses with a combined average of about
20%, a positive growth of 17.1% recorded on domestic arrivals
influenced the total arrival. On passenger departures, international
departures registered the highest growth of 36.4%.
During the same period, total aircraft movement registered growths
of 6.9%. Total arrivals grew by 6.6%. This is as a result of an
average of both international and regional arrivals that recorded
declines of 13% and 2% as well as domestic arrivals that recorded
an increment of about 8%. Total departures have grown by 7.2%.
Domestic departures recorded the highest growth among the
departures while regional departures declined by 4.2%.

4 591

Walvis Bay airport recorded a slight growth of 0.7% during the
period under review. The slight growth was brought on by a
combination of 2.5% increments recorded on total arrivals as well as
declines of 1.2% recorded on total departures. Regional passenger
traffic recorded an average (arrivals and departures) of about 12%.
On the other hand, both international and domestic traffic recorded
positive growths.
Total aircraft movement suffered a loss of 10.2% during the 2012/13
financial year. Movement totals for arrivals and departures have
declined with almost the same rate of about 10.2%. On arrivals,
domestic arrivals have grown by 12.4% while both international
and regional movements have declined with 19.4% and 32.8%
respectively. On the other hand, international and domestic
departures recorded positive growths while regional departures
recorded a loss of 32.3%.
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Commercial Services continued

4. Keetmanshoop airport
statistics

2012/2013
2011/2012
12 months 12 months

5. LÜDERITZ AIRPORT
STATISTICS

2012/2013
2011/2012
12 months 12 months

Passenger Traffic: Arrivals		
International				
Regional 			
Domestic			

1 077
0
263
814

1 055
0
284
771

Passenger Traffic: Arrivals		
International			
Regional 			
Domestic			

3 330
0
16
3 314

1 934
0
53
1 881

Passenger Traffic: Departures		
International			
Regional 			
Domestic 			

1 081
0
278
803

1 043
0
318
725

Passenger Traffic: Departures		
International			
Regional 			
Domestic 			

2 854
0
41
2 813

1 969
0
56
1 913

Total Passenger Traffic 		

2 158

2 098

Total Passenger Traffic 		

6 184

3 903

Aircraft Movements: Arrivals			
International			
Regional 			
Domestic			

461
0
138
323

552
0
174
378

Aircraft Movements: Arrivals			
813
International				 0
Regional 				
42
Domestic				
771

620
0
42
578

Aircraft Movements: Departures		
International				
Regional 				
Domestic				

460
0
119
341

553
0
1 77
376

Aircraft Movements: Departures		
810
International				
0
Regional 				
54
Domestic				 756

621
0
32
589

Total Aircraft Movements 		

921

1105

Total Aircraft Movements 		

Total passenger traffic has registered a positive growth of 2.9%
during the period under review. Both arrivals and departures grew
by 2.1% and 3.6% while regional arrivals declined by 7.4%. There
was no international traffic recorded at this airport. Domestic
passenger traffic has grown by about 8% while regional traffic has
declined by about 10%.
Total aircraft movement has declined with a notable 16.7% during
the period. Both total arrivals and departures recorded declines of
about 17%. No international movement was recorded during this
period. Both regional and domestic movements recorded losses.

1 623

1 241

Lüderitz airport recorded a significant total passenger traffic growth
of 58.4% during the period under review. Even though regional
traffic has dropped both on arrivals and departures, domestic
passenger traffic has grown with significant increments and volumes
of more than 50%.
On passenger movements, an increment of 30% has been recorded
at this airport during the period under review. Both total arrivals and
departures recorded positive growths with an average of about 31%.
No International movements were recorded, although regional and
domestic movements recorded positive growths.
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Commercial Services continued

6. Katima Mulilo Airport
Statistics

2012/2013
2011/2012
12 months 12 months

7. ONDANGWA AIRPORT
STATISTICS	

2012/2013
2011/2012
12 months 12 months

Passenger Traffic: Arrivals		
International 				
Regional 			
Domestic 				

7 424
60
537
6 827

4 223
64
147
4 012

Passenger Traffic: Arrivals			
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

20 242
108
117
20 017

18 291
139
197
17 955

Passenger Traffic: Departures		
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

7 493
43
491
6 959

4 214
37
150
4 027

Passenger Traffic: Departures		
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

20 857
116
94
20 647

18 326
166
188
17 972

Total Passenger Traffic 			

14 917

8 437

Total Passenger Traffic 		

41 099

36 617

Aircraft Movements: Arrivals			
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

460
25
42
393

467
18
60
389

Aircraft Movements: Arrivals			
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

1 463
104
92
1 267

1 460
178
97
1 185

Aircraft Movements: Departures		
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

461
27
42
392

467
19
54
394

Aircraft Movements: Departures		
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

1 482
108
86
1 288

1 460
199
110
1 151

Total Aircraft Movements 		

921

934

Total Aircraft Movements 		

2 945

2 920

Katima Mulilo airport has recorded an astonishing positive growth
of about 76.8% during the period under review. On arrivals, regional
arrivals recorded an outstanding growth of 265% followed by
domestic arrivals while international arrivals suffered a loss of 6.3%.
Positive growths were recorded on all categories of departures.
Contrary to the total passenger traffic, total aircraft movements
declined with 1.4% during the same reporting period. On arrivals,
international movements have increased by 38.9% followed by
domestic arrivals while regional arrivals recorded a loss of 30%. On
departures, only international movement recorded positive growth
of 42.1% while regional and domestic departures succumbed to
losses.

Ondangwa airport recorded a positive increment of 12.2% during
the period under review. On arrivals, only domestic arrivals recorded
a positive growth of 11.5% while international and regional arrivals
recorded losses. Similarly departures recorded positive growth on
domestic departures while international and regional departures
suffered losses.
Total aircraft movements recorded a slight growth of 0.9% during
the period under review. All other passenger traffic follows a similar
pattern. Only domestic movements have a positive growth while
international and regional movements both recorded losses.
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8. Rundu Airport Statistics

2012/2013
2011/2012
12 months 12 months

Passenger Traffic: Arrivals			
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

3 471
15
25
3 431

3 110
10
62
3 038

Passenger Traffic: Departures		
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

2 903
18
42
2 843

3 325
6
67
3 252

Total Passenger Traffic 		

6 374

6 435

Aircraft Movements: Arrivals			
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

519
11
22
486

653
7
46
600

Aircraft Movements: Departures		
International 				
Regional 				
Domestic 				

581
12
27
542

653
8
49
596

Total Aircraft Movements 			

1 100

1 306

Rundu airport has registered a decline of 0.9% in total passenger
traffic during the period under review. While total arrivals recorded
an increment of 11.4%, total departures traffic suffered a loss
of 12.7%. Domestic traffic has the most volumes compared to
international and regional traffic.
Total aircraft movement has recorded a negative growth of 15.8%
during the period. Both arrivals and departures recorded losses. On
total arrivals only international arrivals recorded a positive growth
of 57.1% while regional and domestic arrivals recorded decreases.
Similarly, departures followed the same pattern as arrivals.

22

about THE company’s

Human Resources
With the introduction of a performance management initiative,
NAC’s operational efficiency is steadily improving. This initiative
contributes significantly to an organisational culture that fosters
innovation, flexibility and competitive advantage. The period under
review is a “calming” period after the restructuring intervention
of March 2012. Although the intervention resulted in some staff
members separating from the Company characterised by high
emotions and sensational media reporting, NAC has not failed
to deliver on its mandate and obligations. The replacement of
employees that voluntarily left and training thereof was a resounding
success. Training interventions, organisational structure realignment
was executed with a purpose of achieving operational efficiency and
meeting the regulator’s requirements.
In the aviation industry, service delivery plays an integral part and
people with the right competencies (knowledge, skills, correct

attitude and attributes) are vital. A key success factor is to have an
effective human resources environment that provides opportunities
for best performers and adequately addresses the needs of poor
performers.
Human resources is a function intimately connected with the
strategy and day-to-day running of the business. Therefore NAC
focuses on human resources initiatives with long-term objectives
to achieve increased employee productivity. The company has
developed a corporate strategy with a specific focus on increasing
revenue and attaining better profitability. To achieve this goal human
resources planning and utilisation is critical.

1. Staff Compliment
The table below depicts the staff movements for the period:

Year
Management
General staff
Contract
Total
Resourcing	Separation
					
Employees
2012
24		
242		
4			270		52		28
2013
25		
249		
15			289		60		27
Total
49		
491		
19			559		112		55

2. Separation
A total of 55 employees separated from NAC during the period
under review. This represents a labour turnover of 9.8 %.

3. Training
Continuous and competency based training is key to service
delivery. It ensures service standards consistent with the
industry norms. During the period under review 21% of staff
members attended various competency based short-term training
interventions.
Year

Management

General staff

Total

2012

6		

32		

38

2013

13		

64		

77

Total

19		

96		

115

About 3% have enrolled in formal education on a part-time/distance
learning basis.
Year
2012
2013
Total

Management

General staff		 Total

1		 9		10
3		4		7
4		13		17

Middle Managers were enrolled for the Management Development
Programme (MDP) through the University of Stellenbosch for a
period of four months. Furthermore, operational mentorship and
coaching is ongoing throughout the company.

The Company continues to contribute towards the national skills
development pool by offering bursaries to tertiary students at
tertiary institutions in Namibia and beyond. For the financial year
2012/2013, four (4) students were awarded bursaries in the field of
engineering to ensure that future staff needs at the corporate level
are met.

4. Labour Relations
NAC is a highly unionised company with about 213 staff
members falling in the bargaining unit.195 of the total bargaining
unit employees are union members. The company fosters a
mutual relationship of trust, respect and understanding with the
union.

5. Understanding the Needs of our ‘Gems’
In an attempt to understand the needs and concerns of staff, a
climate survey was carried out by an external organisation. The
survey identified various pertinent issues to be taken into account
when formulating strategies. The ultimate goal is to create a positive
work environment.

6. Employee Wellness
Illnesses and psychosocial conditions can have a negative impact
on the workforce and operations.
In view of the above, employee wellness and safety remains a
focus. Due to the nature of the operations environment, NAC is
further committed to the implementation of an integrated Safety,
Health and Environment Management System.
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Human Resources
It is undisputed that a safe working environment is a positive factor for
productivity. NAC thus acknowledges and embraces the importance
of its employees’ well-being and ensures that all employees are
working in a safe environment.

7. Performance Management System
A Performance Management System, PMS, has been developed and
is being implemented across the company. The Company’s reward
system will be linked to performance in the near future.

8. Conclusion
The year under review was a fairly good year, as the Company
did not experience an industrial action or strained relations with
employees.

Corporate and Legal
Services
The department comprises of three employees headed by a General
Manager and has two divisions.

Corporate Services Division
The Corporate Services division is mainly responsible for rendering
administrative and secretarial services to the board of directors
as well as board and management committees. The division is
also responsible for the safe keeping of Company policies and
agreements. The General Manager for Corporate and Legal Services
is also the Company Secretary and is assisted by the Assistant
Company Secretary and a secretary.
The Company Secretary is responsible for the training and induction
process of new directors, encompassing both directors’ duties
and responsibilities in general and specific matters pertaining to
the Company itself and the aviation industry in which it operates.
The office also provides the directors with guidance in their duties,
responsibilities and powers and makes directors aware of all laws and
regulations relevant to the Company, including advice on business
ethics and good governance.
The Company Secretary also serves as a coordinator between the
board of directors and management staff by ensuring that the former’s
resolutions and instructions are communicated to the relevant
persons in the Company and that pertinent issues from management
are referred back to the Board where appropriate.

Legal Services
The Legal Services division is mainly responsible for managing legal
risks to which the Company may be exposed. The division has one
in-house Legal Advisor.
Legal risk is mainly managed by ensuring that the Company complies
with its obligations contained in relevant international instruments,
national statutes, regulations, policies and agreements.
The Legal Advisor provides legal advice, counselling and
recommendations to the Company. The division also drafts, reviews
and revises all legal instruments used in the Company’s business
transactions, and represent it at tribunals and labour courts. Litigation
matters before other courts are outsourced to various external legal
counsel.
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Operations and
Engineering
Division: Aviation Planning
Airport master plans form part of the integral activities under the
Aviation Planning division. For the period under review the division
successfully secured funding from the African Development Bank to
finance the following projects:
- Environmental Master plan for all NAC airports; feasibility study
and basic design for the passenger terminal at Hosea Kutako
International Airport, and the
- Land-use studies for the upgrading of the five NAC regional
airports.

Division: Technical Services
The Technical Services division is mainly responsible for the
development of strategies geared towards continuous infrastructure
development and efficient maintenance of NAC assets.
In a quest to enhance service excellence and to cater to the needs
of the multitude of passengers coming in from around the world, the
NAC is successfully completing the following capital projects at its
Airports:
- Rehabilitation of the runway at Hosea Kutako International
Airport,
- Expansion of the terminal building at Lüderitz Airport,
- Construction of a fire station at Lüderitz Airport,
- Access road to Ondangwa Airport,
- Perimeter fencing at HKIA and Eros Airport,
- The expansion of the apron at Eros Airport,
- The provision of fire tenders at Eros Airport.
The projects that are currently underway at the airports, as well
as envisaged for the 2013/2014 financial year and beyond are
highlighted under the Chairperson’s foreword.
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					Windhoek
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					Windhoek
					NAMIBIA
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Directors’ responsibility for financial reporting
The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of Namibia Airports Company
Limited, comprising the statement of the financial position at 31 March 2013, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, and the directors’ report, in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting records and an
effective system of risk management.
The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe that
the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead.

Approval of the annual financial statements
The annual financial statements of Namibia Airports Company Limited, as set out on pages 32 to 54, were approved by the board of
directors on 16 September 2013 and signed by:

N.N. Katonyala								M.C. Boshoff		
Director									Director				
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Report of the independent auditors
To the shareholder of Namibia Airports Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the
Namibia Airports Company Limited, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and the notes
to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies, other explanatory notes and directors’ report as
set out on pages 30 to 54.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Companies Act of Namibia and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Namibia Airports
Company Limited as at 31 March 2013, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the period then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in
the manner required by the Namibian Companies Act.

Emphasis of matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that the
supplementary information set out on page 54 does not form part
of the annual financial statements and is presented as additional
information. We have not audited this information and accordingly
do not express an opinion thereon.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements, plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (Namibia)
Per: AA Akayombokwa
Partner
Windhoek, 16 September 2013

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

To the shareholder of Namibia Airports Company Limited
The directors present their report, which forms part of the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2013.

Nature of business
There were no changes in the nature of the Company’s business
during the year under review. The current business of the Company
is the management and operation of the following airports in
Namibia:
- Eros Airport
- Hosea Kutako International Airport
- Katima Mulilo Airport
- Keetmanshoop Airport
- Lüderitz Airport
- Ondangwa Airport
- Rundu Airport
- Walvis Bay Airport

Dividends
No dividend was declared during the period under review (2012:
N$Nil).

Share capital
The authorised and issued share capital has remained unchanged.

Directorate
The following persons acted as directors during the year and after
the reporting date:
N.N. Katonyala
M.C. Boshoff
F. Aluteni
J. Steytler		
I. Mainga		

- resigned on 31 May 2012
- resigned on 03 July 2012

Financial results
The financial results of the Company are set out in the attached
financial statements.

Board and Committee meetings
Board of Directors		Board	Special Board	Audit		Remuneration Technical
Investment		
									Committee	Committee	Committee	Committee
Meetings Held			 6
5		 5		 7		4		1
Attendance:											
N.N. Katonyala			
6
5		
5		
- 		
1
M.C. Boshoff			 6
4		 5		 4		4		1
F. Aluteni			
6
4		
- 		
7		
- 		
J. Steytler			
1
- 		
- 		
- 		
I. Mainga			
1
1		
- 		
1
- 		
-

Company Secretary
The secretary of the Company as at 31 March 2013 and date of this report was:
Ms. V. Kambarami
Business Address				Postal
5th Floor					
P. O. Box 23061
	Sanlam Centre					Windhoek
154 Independence Avenue
Windhoek

Subsequent events
Subsequent events are disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.

Going Concern
The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future and are
satisfied that the Company has access to adequate resources and facilities to be able to continue operations for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the board has continued to adopt the going-concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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Namibia Airports Company Limited
Registration No: 98/472
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION		
								
Restated		
Restated
						31 March 2013		31 March 2012		31 August 2010
Notes
N$
N$
N$
ASSETS		
Non-current assets
1,694,505,136
1,683,536,969
1,651,886,798
Property, plant and equipment
11
1,694,505,136
1,683,505,918
1,651,786,865
Trade and other receivables
12
31,051
99,933
Current assets		
Trade and other receivables
12
Taxation receivable
21
Cash and cash equivalents
13

418,417,125
55,781,725
6,000,000
356,635,400

352,686,433
73,811,964
278,874,469

273,971,104
36,063,089
237,908,015

Total assets		

2,112,922,261

2,036,223,402

1,925,857,902

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			
Share capital and premium
15
39,087,181
39,087,181
39,087,181
Non distributable reserves
16
292,444,527
227,670,527
104,974,267
Retained earnings		
1,302,486,450
1,252,104,594
1,199,485,697
Total equity		
1,634,018,158
1,518,862,302
1,343,547,145
				
Non-current liabilities				
Deferred taxation
17
438,794,335
458,994,343
515,514,090
Current liabilities		
Current taxation
21
Trade and other payables
18

40,109,768
40,109,768

58,366,757
11,944,555
46,422,202

66,796,667
11,944,555
54,852,112

Total liabilities		

478,904,103

517,361,100

582,310,757

2,112,922,261

2,036,223,402

1,925,857,902

Total equity and liabilities
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Registration No: 98/472
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
												
Restated
											
19 months ended
									
31 March 2013
31 March 2012
								
Notes		
N$		
N$
Revenue
5
191,133,177
270,026,332
Operating expenses
7
(180,416,227)
(298,129,937)
Other operating income
6
7,537,944
6,278,882
Results from operating activities		

18,254,894

(21,824,723)

Finance income
8
Finance costs
8
Net finance income		

12,250,002
(323,048)
11,926,954

18,371,280
(447,404)
17,923,876

Profit/(loss) before tax		

30,181,848

(3,900,847)

Income tax
9
Profit for the year/period		

20,200,008
50,381,856

56,519,747
52,618,900

Other comprehensive income		 -

-

Total comprehensive income for the year/period		

50,381,856

52,618,900
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share capital
Non distributable
Retained
Total
and premium
reserves
earnings		
N$
N$
N$
N$
												
Opening balance as previously reported
39,087,181
1,199,485,694
1,238,572,875
Adjustments						
Prior year Adjustment (See note 4)
104,974,267
104,974,267
						
Balance as at 01 September 2010 as restated
39,087,181
104,974,267
1,199,485,694
1,343,547,142
						
Adjustments						
Prior year Adjustment (See note 4 and note 16)		
122,696,260
122,696,260
						
Total comprehensive loss for the year						
Profit for the period as previously reported		
16,655,253
16,655,253
						
Adjustments					
Profit and loss for the period (See note 4.3)			
35,963,647
35,963,647
						
Balance as at 01 April 2012 as restated
39,087,181
227,670,527
1,252,104,594
1,518,862,302
Total government grant received for the year
Government grant		
64,774,000 		
64,774,000
						
Total comprehensive income for the period						
Profit for the year		
50,381,856
50,381,856
						
Balance as at 31 March 2013
39,087,181
292,444,527
1,302,486,450
1,634,018,158
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Registration No: 98/472
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
			Restated
			
19 months ended
		
31 March 2013
31 March 2012
Notes
N$
N$
												
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax		
30,181,848
(3,900,847)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
7
49,748,014
71,241,324
Written off to expenses from work in progress
11
58,950
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
6
(3,686,492)
(269,260)
Net finance income
8
(11,926,954)
(17,923,876)
		
64,375,366
49,147,341
Change in trade and other receivables		
Change in trade and other payables		
Cash generated from operating activities		

18,061,289
(6,312,434)
76,124,221

(37,679,995)
(8,429,910)
3,037,436

Interest paid
8
(323,048)
(447,404)
Income tax paid
21
(17,944,555)
Net cash from operating activities		
57,856,618
2,590,032
				
Cash flows from investing activities			

Interest received
8
12,250,002
18,371,280
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment		
4,557,015
269,260
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
11
(61,676,705)
(102,960,377)
Net cash from investing activities		
(44,869,688)
(84,319,837)
				
Cash flows from financing activities				
Government grant
16
64,774,000
122,696,260
Net cash flows from financing activities		
64,774,000
122,696,260
		
Net change in cash and cash equivalents		
77,760,930
40,966,455
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

13

278,874,470

237,908,015

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

13

356,635,400

278,874,470
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Principal accounting policies and
		 presentation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and its
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and the requirements of the Namibian Companies
Act. The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost
basis and the measurement of certain financial instruments at fair
value.

Useful lives of assets
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its useful
life taking into account residual values where appropriate. In
assessing useful lives, factors such as technological innovation,
product life cycles as well as maintenance programmes are taken
into account.

1.1 Reporting entity

Retirement benefit obligations
In determining and assessing its retirement benefit obligations,
the Company relies on various actuarial assumptions and
calculations taking into account the employees’ expected average
remaining working lives.

Namibia Airports Company Limited is a Company domiciled in
Namibia. The address of the Company’s registered offices is on
the 5th floor of the Sanlam Centre situated at 154 Independence
Avenue in Windhoek. The Company is primarily involved in the
management and operation of certain airports.

Residual values
The residual values of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date. The residual values are based
on the assessment of useful lives and other available information.

1.2 Functional and presentation currency

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

The financial statements are presented in Namibia Dollar, which
is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in Namibia Dollar has been rounded to the nearest
Namibia Dollar.

1.3 Significant judgements
In preparing the financial statements, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards, requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Significant judgements include:
Loans and receivables
The Company assesses its trade receivables or loans for
impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the profit or loss, the
Company makes judgements as to whether there is observable
data indicating a measurable decrease in the future cash flows
from a financial asset.

All property, plant and equipment is shown at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, except for land, which
is shown at cost less impairment. Cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Land and buildings comprise mainly roads and runways,
terminal buildings and offices. All other repairs and maintenance
expenditures are charged to the profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

1.4 Property, plant and equipment continued

1.6 Financial instruments

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of each asset less its residual value over its
estimated useful life for current and comparative period as
follows:
Buildings, roads and runways:
- Buildings 				
- Leasehold improvements 			
- Roads and runways				

40 years
3 years
20 years

Computers, furniture and other equipment:
- Airport equipment 				
- Computer equipment 			
- Office equipment and furniture			

5 years
5 years
5 years

Motor vehicles:
- Fire fighting vehicles 			
- Motor vehicles				

15 years
5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
disposal proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in
the profit or loss.
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

1.5 Impairment of assets
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets held and used
is recognised and measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset with the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cost to sell. Value in use is measured as the present
value of future cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. If the carrying amount of an asset is not recoverable, an
impairment charge amounting to the carrying amount of the asset
that exceeds the recoverable amount is recognised. The review
for impairment is carried out at the level where discrete cash
flows occur that are independent of other cash flows.

(i) Financial assets
The Company initially recognises loans, receivables and deposits
on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets
are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.
Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or
liability.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
presented in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
The Company has the following non-derivative financial assets:
- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
- loans and receivables.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or loss if
it is classified as held for trading or is designated as such upon
initial recognition. Financial assets are designated at fair value
through profit or loss if the Company manages such investments
and makes purchases and sale decisions based on their fair
value in accordance with the Company’s investment policy. Upon
initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair values, and changes therein
are recognised in profit or loss.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses. Loans
and receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the
statement of financial position.
Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables.

An impairment loss related to intangible assets is reversed if and
to the extent there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. The loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised. Reversals of impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call
deposits with original maturities of three months or less and unit
trust investments in money market funds that are of a short-term
nature.
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(ii) Financial liabilities

The Company initially recognises liabilities on the date that they
are originated. All other financial liabilities are recognised initially
on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The Company has the following non-derivative financial liabilities:
trade and other payables.
Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.
Trade payables
Trade payables are carried at the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods or services that have been received
or supplied and invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier.

1.7 Operating lease assets
1.7.1 Operating leases - lessee
Leases where the lessor retains a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are charged to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
1.7.2 Operating leases - lessor
Assets leased to third parties under operating leases are
included in property, plant and equipment in the statement of
financial position. These are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned property,
plant and equipment. Rental income (net of any incentives given
to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

1.8 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

1.9 Deferred and current tax
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted
for. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the profit or loss. Current tax is the expected
tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

1.10 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan
The Company had a pension scheme, which was administered
by Government Institutions Pension Fund. The scheme was a
defined benefit plan and was governed by the Pension Fund
Act. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
pension plans was calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in prior years, discounted to determine its present value. The
calculation was performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. The defined benefit obligation
in prior years for the Namibia Airports Company employees was
valued using the projected unit credit method.
The fair value of plan assets was not recognised as employers
are not entitled to a contribution holiday or reimbursement using
any surplus within the fund. Surplus benefits of surplus funds are
passed to the employers at the discretion of the trustees in the
form of steady fund contributions, provided employers remain
members of the fund.
Past service costs are recognised immediately in income,
unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the
employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the
vesting period). In this case, past service costs are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The gain or loss
on curtailment comprises any resulting change in the fair value
of plan assets, change in the present value of defined benefit
obligation and any related actuarial gains and losses and past
service costs that had not previously been recognised.
Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid under short-term bonus and annual leave if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Defined contribution plan

The company established its own fund during the year
under review called NAC Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
If the contribution is due more than 12 months after the end of
the year-end in which the employees render the related services
then the amount of contribution is discounted. The discount
rate used is determined by reference to the market yields at
the balance sheet date on highly quality corporate bonds or
government bonds as appropriate.

1.11 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises landing fees, passenger service, aircraft
parking, car parking fees, rental income, concession revenue,
passenger handling fees, ramp handling and percentage of
turnover fees, net of Value Added Tax and is recognised upon
performance of services and when the customer has accepted
the service and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.
Other revenues earned by the Company are recognised on the
following basis:
Rental income - recognised in line with note 1.7.2.

1.12 Dividends
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholder is recognised
as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors.

2. Financial risk management
(i) Financial risk factors

In the normal course of its operations, the Company is exposed
to currency, interest rate, liquidity and credit risk. The Company
manages these risks as follows:

Credit risk

Credit risk, which is defined as the risk that one party to a
financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation, is limited to cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivables.
The following principles and practices are administered to
mitigate credit risk exposure:
Facilities are advanced to customers subject to credit history
checks
- Cash and cash equivalents are evenly spread amongst
reputable financial institutions to limit the exposure to any one
financial institution.
- Cash transactions are dealt making use of services offered by
reputable financial institutions.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk, which is defined as the risk that an entity will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities, is limited to trade and other payables.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as
interest rates will affect the Company’s income or the value of
its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Other price risk

Other price risk, which is defined as the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument
or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market, has no material impact on the Company.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk, which is defined as the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates, has
no material impact on the Company. Future cash flows from
financial instruments are not dependent on changes in foreign
currency rates due to the fact that the overwhelming majority
of transactions are executed in Namibia Dollar, the functional
currency of the Company.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk, which is defined as the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates, is limited to future returns
from cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.
The following principles and practices are administered to
mitigate interest rate risk exposure:
- Cash transactions are administered making use of services
offered by reputable financial institutions who offer
competitive rates of return that are relatively close to the
inflation of the respective periods.
- Flexible short-term funding is actively managed by making use
of reputable financial institutions to earn fair returns on liquid
short-term investments.

3. Fair value estimation
In assessing the fair value of financial instruments, the Company
uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for the specific or similar
instruments are used for the relevant financial instruments.
The nominal value less estimated credit adjustment of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
value. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Company
for similar financial instruments.
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4. Prior year Adjustments
4.1 In prior years, Government grants received were initially recognised as deferred revenue when there was a reasonable assurance
that they would be received and the Company would comply with the conditions associated with the grant, and were then recognised
through profit and loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset upon completion of these projects.
The accounting policy in relation to Government grants was changed in the current year to be better aligned to comply with IFRS.
In terms of IAS 20, this Standard does not apply to receipts received by Government owned entities from Government in its
capacity as owner of the entity. Where IAS 20 does not apply, the entity should consider the Conceptual Framework for guidance
on the appropriate recognition, measurement and presentation of transactions in the financial statements. Income is defined in the
Conceptual Framework as increases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of inflows or enhancements of
assets or decreases of liabilities that result in increases in equity, other than those relating to contributions from equity participants.
The application of the Conceptual Framework results in the recognition of contributions from Government being reflected directly in
equity. The amount should therefore be reflected directly in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
The change in accounting policy has been adjusted retrospectively. This resulted in a decrease in Government grant revenue
recognised in profit and loss of N$1 482 387, decrease in taxation expense of N$504 012, and a corresponding decrease in retained
earnings for the reporting period ending 31 March 2012 of N$978 375 (N$ nil for the period ending 31 August 2010).
The following table summarises the adjustments made to the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity as at
31 August 2010 and for the year ended 31 March 2012 as a result of the change in accounting policy:

31 March 2012			 31 August 2010
As previously
Adjustments
Restated
As previously
Adjustments
Restated
reported			
reported
			
														
Deferred Revenue Liability
(226,188,140)
226,188,140
- (104,974,267)
104,974,267
Taxation payable
(12,339,649)
395,094
(11,944,555)
(11,944,555)
(11,944,555)
Deferred Taxation
(496,045,282)
108,918 (495,936,364) (515,514,090)
(515,514,090)
Overall impact on total liabilities		 226,692,152			
104,974,267
Non-Distributable Reserves
- (227,670,527) (227,670,527)
(104,974,267)
(104,974,267)
Retained earnings			
1,199,485,694
- 1,199,485,694
Overall impact on equity		 (227,670,527)			 (104,974,267)
														
The following table summarises the financial effects on the statement of comprehensive income for the periods ended 31 August 2010
and 31 March 2012 as a result of the change in accounting policy:						
												2012		2010
Decrease in Government Grant Revenue					
(1,482,387)
Decrease in taxation expense					
504,012
Decrease in profit and loss for the period					
(978,375)
														
The Company has applied the change in accounting policy as from the period beginning 1 September 2007, as the correction relating
to periods prior to this is considered impractical.
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4.2 Tax error
In 2012 the company deducted the expenditure to rehabilitate runways, taxiways as well as the expenditure to conduct related works
in terms of section 17(1)(f) of the Income Tax Act 24 of 1981 (‘’the Income Tax Act”) by deducting 20% allowance of the cost of project
in the 2012 year of assessment.
The above expenditures were reviewed in the current year and it was established that the company has no basis for deducting any
of the expenditures in terms of section 17(1)(f) of the income Tax Act due to the fact that neither the runways nor taxiways constitute
“buildings” as contemplated in section 17(1)(f). However, after reviewing the substance of the rehabilitation project and the general
requirements for deduction of the expenditure in the Income Tax Act it was concluded that the rehabilitation project constituted repairs
and maintenance and therefore fully deductible for tax purposes.
The following table summarises the adjustments made to the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity as at
31 August 2010 and for the year ended 31 March 2012 as a result of tax error explained above:

					

31 March 2012				

31 August 2010

As previously
Adjustments
Restated
As previously
Adjustments
Restated
reported			
reported				
													
Deferred taxation
(496,045,282)
36,942,021 (459,103,261)								
Tax payable
(12,339,649)
395,094
(11,944,555)					
Taxation expense/(credit)
(19,073,714)
(37,337,115)
(56,410,829)					
4.3 Overall impact
Deferred Revenue Liability
Non-Distributable Reserves
Deferred taxation
Tax payable
Taxation expense/(credit)
Profit and loss for the period

(226,188,140)
(496,045,282)
(12,339,649)
(19,073,714)
16,655,253

226,188,140
(227,670,527)
37,050,939
395,094
(37,446,033)
35,963,647

- (104,974,267)
104,974,267
(227,670,527)
(104,974,267)
(104,974,267)
(458,994,343)		
(11,944,555)					
(56,519,747)				
52,618,900
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19 months ended
										31 March 2013		31 March 2012
5. Revenue
								 N$			
N$
												
Revenue derived from continuing operations comprises:							
Landing fees
31,213,882
41,983,572
Passenger service fees
113,800,820
150,958,302
Aircraft parking fees
3,717,043
5,204,268
After-hours operating fees
2,317,997
2,843,715
Motor vehicle parking fees
5,097,594
6,785,253
Rental income
27,826,510
53,162,310
Concession revenue
1,331,010
2,091,480
Commission income
2,956,665
3,499,377
Handling fees
2,871,656
3,498,055
		
191,133,177
270,026,332
												

6. Other operating income										

Bad debts recovered
Fair value gains on investments
1,343,503
Foreign exchange gain
81,910
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
3,686,492
Sundry income (costs recovered, tender document fees etc.)
1,077,238
Water and electricity
1,348,801
		
7,537,944
												

20,850
2,120,262
51,645
269,260
1,655,361
2,161,504
6,278,882

7. Operating expenses											
7.1 The following items have been charged/(credited) in arriving at operating expenses:					
						
												
Depreciation
49,748,014
71,241,324
Operating lease rentals
2,590,472
3,656,961
Land and building
2,537,930
3,590,590
Office equipment
52,542
66,371
												
Auditors’ remuneration:
689,055
1,047,756
Current year fees
689,055
216,120
Prior year under provision
831,636
												
Directors’ emoluments (refer to note 10)
591,562
1,255,934
Staff costs (refer to 7.2)
Consulting fees
Repairs and maintenance:
Land, building, roads and runways
Office and other equipment
Computer equipment
Motor vehicles
Allowance for impairment of trade debtors

64,267,870

145,623,803

8,167,696

5,684,735

10,576,273
5,737,484
3,465,416
27,224
1,346,149

13,082,944
6,632,658
3,019,750
22,650
3,407,886

6,510,125

1,124,870
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19 months ended
Restated
			
31 March 2013
31 March 2012
31 August 2010
7. Operating expenses (continued)
N$
N$
N$
														
7.2 Staff costs
Salaries and wages
Restructuring costs
Social security expenses
Pension costs
Medical aid contributions
Group life assurance
Other staff cost
			

55,125,612
261,318
4,412,450
3,954,784
385,330
128,376
64,267,870

97,296,737
32,653,581
534,985
7,684,023
5,522,067
397,956
1,534,454
145,623,803

		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Number of employees at the end of the year		
- Full time
273
265 		
														
Remuneration paid to management personnel including									
key management:
Salaries and allowances
12,803,221
14,381,558		
Post retirement benefits
1,381,206
4,392,009		
Bonus
703,362
1,960,258		
			
14,887,789
20,733,825
														

8. Net finance income

Finance income
12,250,002
18,371,280 		
Bank balances
949,308
992,856 		
Short-term investments
11,300,694
17,378,424 		
														
Finance costs
(323,048)
(447,404)		
Bank loans and overdrafts
- 			
Other
(323,048)
(447,404)		
			
11,926,954
17,923,876 		
														

9. Taxation							

Current tax
(17,889,537)
Deferred tax
20,200,008
56,519,747
15,861,475
			
20,200,008
56,519,747
(2,028,062)
														
Reconciliation of the tax expense
														
Reconciliation between accounting profit and										
tax expense

Accounting profit/(loss) before tax
30,181,848
(3,900,847)
(3,523,907)
														
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 34% (2012: 34%)
(10,261,828)
1,326,288
1,198,128
													
Income not subject to tax
443,356
720,889
310,093
Deferred tax - rate change
13,499,834
Prior year adjustments
37,446,033
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
(517,418)
(66,980)
(3,536,283)
Prior year over/(under) provision
17,036,063
17,093,516
Tax charge calculated
20,200,008
56,519,747
(2,028,062)
														
Tax loss available for utilisation against future
taxable income
43,300,959
87,715,008
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19 months ended		
31 March 2012			
			 N$		
N$		
Non-Executive Directors:			
I. Mainga			
36,989		
69,795
J. Stytler 			
25,009		
61,180
F. Aluteni			
133,592		
126,538
M. Boshoff			
208,352		
363,372
N. Katonyala			
187,620		
402,002
E. Haihambo			
-		
1,400
M. van der Merwe			
-		
8,004
P. Amunyela			
-		
223,643
			591,562		1,255,934
11. Net finance income		
									
Land, buildings,
Work in
Computers,
Motor
TOTAL
roads and runways
progress
furniture and
vehicles
			
other equipment		
N$
N$
N$
N$
N$
Period ended 31 March 2013										
Opening carrying amount
1,620,844,598
32,621,905
10,033,652
20,005,763
1,683,505,918
Additions
2,532,714
48,742,457
3,127,214
7,274,320
61,676,705
Disposal
(617,906)
(10)
(252,608)
(870,524)
Transfers
18,978,069
(31,583,634)
111,304
12,435,311
(58,950)
Depreciation charge
(38,018,918)
(4,270,244)
(7,458,852)
(49,748,014)
Closing carrying amount
1,603,718,557
49,780,728
9,001,916
32,003,935
1,694,505,136
														
Cost
1,910,061,972
49,780,728
29,495,856
69,571,778
2,058,910,334
Accumulated depreciation
(306,343,415)
(20,493,940)
(37,567,843)
(364,405,198)
1,603,718,557
49,780,728
9,001,916
32,003,935
1,694,505,136
														
Period ended 31 March 2012												
														
Opening carrying amount
1,552,130,284
66,921,317
10,404,569
22,330,695
1,651,786,865
Additions
9,546,467
81,816,759
6,304,896
5,292,255
102,960,377
Transfers
116,116,171
(116,116,171)
Depreciation charge
(56,948,324)
(6,675,813)
(7,617,187)
(71,241,324)
Closing carrying amount
1,620,844,598
32,621,905
10,033,652
20,005,763
1,683,505,918
														
Cost
1,889,242,708
32,621,905
26,318,768
54,053,149
2,002,236,530
Accumulated depreciation
(268,398,110)
(16,285,116)
(34,047,386)
(318,730,612)
1,620,844,598
32,621,905
10,033,652
20,005,763
1,683,505,918
														
Details of freehold land and buildings are recorded in a register, which may be inspected at the Company’s registered office.

10. Directors’ emoluments			
31 March 2013		

Land and buildings with a carrying value of N$7,389,271 (2012: N$7,188 791) transferred to Namibia Airports Company Limited
from the Ministry of Works, Transport and Communication in terms of Section 14 of the Namibia Airports Company Act No. 25 of
1998 have not yet been registered in the name of the Company.
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19 months ended
										31 March 2013		31 March 2012

12. Trade and other receivables			
Trade receivables
Gross trade receivables
Allowance for impairment

N$		N$
38,553,738
59,327,759
(20,774,021)

43,005,326
57,269,222
(14,263,896)		

Other receivables													
Staff debtors
3,885,020
3,334,670
GST receivable from the Receiver of Revenue
253,856
253,856 		
VAT receivable from the Receiver of Revenue
5,352,642
14,556,507
Straight-lining of lease rentals
11,127,132
16,085,799
Sundry receivables
166,812
164,332		
Allowance for impairment
(3,557,475)
(3,557,475)
		
17,227,987
30,837,689
55,781,725

73,843,015

Non-current			
GST receivable from the Receiver of Revenue
253,856
253,856 		
Staff debtors
3,334,670
Impairment
(253,856)
(3,557,475)				31,051
Current														
Gross trade receivables
59,327,759
57,269,222
Impairment
(20,774,021)
(14,263,896)
VAT receivable from the Receiver of Revenue
5,352,642
14,556,507
Straight-lining of lease rentals
11,127,132
16,085,799
Sundry receivables
166,812
164,332
Staff debtors
3,885,020
Impairment
(3,303,619)
		
55,781,725
73,811,964
		

55,781,725

73,843,015

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment losses
related to trade and other receivables is disclosed in note 23.								
															
			

13. Cash and cash equivalents										
			
Bank balances
Unit trust balances
Cash on hand
		

283,105,287
73,478,113
52,000
356,635,400

209,795,133
68,960,134
119,202
278,874,469

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment losses
related to cash and cash equivalents is disclosed in note 23.													

14. Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line
items below:		
Loans and receivables		
Trade and other receivables
39,048,095
Cash and cash equivalents
356,635,400
		
395,683,495

42,946,853
278,874,469
321,821,322
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Restated		
Restated
							31 March 2013		31 March 2012		31 August 2010
15. Share capital and premium		
N$			
N$			
N$
Authorised			
Ordinary shares
90 000 000 (2012: 90 000 000) shares of N$1 each
90,000,000
90,000,000
Preference shares												
10 000 000 (2012: 10 000 000) shares of N$1 each
10,000,000
10,000,000 		
														
Issued
Ordinary shares		
1 (2012: 1) share of N$1
1
1 		
Share premium
39,087,180
39,087,180 		
39,087,181
39,087,181 		

16. Non-Distributable reserve

In prior years, Government grants received were initially recognised as deferred revenue when there was a reasonable assurance
that they would be received and the Company would comply with the conditions associated with the grant, and were then recognised
through profit and loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset upon completion of these projects.
However, IAS 20 does not apply to receipts received by Government owned entities from the Government in its capacity as owners of
the entity. Therefore the entity has adopted the Conceptual Framework for guidance on the appropriate recognition, measurement and
presentation of transactions in the financial statements. In terms of the Conceptual Frameworks the grants will be recognised directly
in equity as non-distributable reserves.

The movement is as follows
At beginning of the year
Prior year adjustment
Amount received during the year
Balance and at end of the year

227,670,527
64,774,000
292,444,527

104,974,267
122,696,260
227,670,527

104,974,267
104,974,267

17. Deferred taxation

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a principal tax rate of 33% (2012: 34%).
The movement on the deferred account is as follows:
At beginning of year
458,994,343
515,514,090
531,375,565
Movements during year attributable to:
Temporary differences
(6,700,174)
(19,468,808)
(15,861,475)
Deferred tax - rate change
(13,499,834)
Prior year adjustments
(37,050,939)
At end of year
438,794,335
458,994,343
515,514,090
														
Deferred tax liabilities may be analysed as follows:
Capital allowances
(458,218,620)
(482,547,621)
(520,132,996)
Operating leases
3,671,954
(5,469,172)
(1,348,447)
Income received in advance
1,463,015
1,088,830
Tax loss utilised
14,289,316
29,823,103
Doubtful debt provision
(3,637,294)
4,289,832
Accounting leave pay provision
1,349,060
1,281,845
Other provisions
398,750
395,676
(438,794,335)
(458,994,343)
(515,514,090)
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Restated		
Restated
							31 March 2013		31 March 2012		31 August 2010
								
N$			
N$			
N$

		
18. Trade and other payables
Trade payables

Other payables
Accrual for bonuses
Accrual for leave pay
Accrual penalties, interest and sundry payables
Contract Retentions
Advance Rental Income
Deferred revenue
Rental deposits

9,142,728

16,697,819

30,967,040
858,431
3,857,808
15,291,488
5,446,885
3,453,156
980,224
1,079,048

29,724,383
3,967,824
16,915,999
4,576,881
3,202,442
1,061,237

40,109,768

46,422,202

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related to trade and other payables is
disclosed in note 23.

19. Financial liabilities by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line item below:
Trade and other payables

29,881,102

38,190,699

20. Related parties
Shareholder and directors
The Government of the Republic of Namibia is the sole shareholder of the Company, effectively resulting in all state owned enterprises
being related parties.
The directors are listed in the report of directors.

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel
• B. Biwa 		
• T.S. El-Kallawi 		
• M.C wa Kamau 		
• T. Sem 		
•	V.M. Kambarami
• O. Hamwele 		

employed by the Company during the period are as follows:
Chief Executive Officer
General Manager: Finance, Information Technology and Supply Chain and Acting CEO
General Manager: Operations and Engineering
General Manager: Commercial Services
Company Secretary
General Manager: Human Resources

		
19 months ended
During the period under review key management personnel were
31 March 2013
31 March 2012
remunerated as follows:
N$
N$				
Salaries and allowances
5,695,252
4,472,917
Company contributions
590,622
749,225
Severance payment
728,376
6,285,874
5,950,518
Remuneration of key management personnel is included in staff costs in note 7.2.
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 10.
Details of significant amounts, with a value more than N$50,000, receivable/(payable) or revenue/(purchases) with these related
parties of fellow State Owned Entities are given on the following page:
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20. Related parties continued

													
								31 March 2013			
31 March 2012		
								
N$				
N$			
		
Amount receivable/
Impairment
Amount receivable/
Impairment
Related parties
(payable) 		
(payable)
														
Air Namibia (Proprietary) Limited
20,391,632
27,316,391
(19,670)
Ministry of Defence
2,284,262
(2,284,262)
1,694,796
(1,523,817)
Ministry of Finance
2,016,617
(2,016,617)
1,513,299
(1,374,578)
Ministry of Foreign Affairs
2,486,018
(2,486,018)
1,953,104
(1,953,104)
Ministry of Home Affairs
90,532
(90,532)
19,733
(19,733)
Ministry of Safety and Security
4,035,822
(4,035,822)
3,487,168
(3,284,107)
Ministry of Works and Transport
3,863,831
(3,863,831)
2,052,647
(393,350)
Mobile Telecommunication Limited
50,854
NamPower (Proprietary) Limited
(489,892)
(754,235)
Telecom Namibia Limited
(237,485)
(489,833)
Namibia Water Corporation
Limited (NamWater)
(90,205)
City of Windhoek
(222,868)
(172,266)
Erongo Regional Electricity Distributor (Pty) Limited
(73,410)
(33,101)
Ondangwa Town Council
(106,058)
948,684
-

					19 months ended
		
31 March 2013		
31 March 2012
		
N$		
N$
		
Revenue
Purchases
Revenue
Purchases		Revenue		
Purchases
		
														
Air Namibia (Proprietary) Limited
96,635,113
116,531,963
Ministry of Agriculture
73,665
100,039
Ministry of Defence
716,303
1,084,418
Ministry of Finance
1,916,312
919,968
Ministry of Fisheries
12,401
53,980
Ministry of Foreign Affairs
533,064
848,068
Ministry of Home Affairs
231,198
363,039
Ministry of Safety and Security
787,048
1,458,271
Ministry of Works and Transport
7,642,830
3,406,101
Namdeb Diamond Corporation (Pty) Ltd
42,745
76,544
Nampost Courier Services
40,301
(123,033)
242,821
(132,032)
NamPower (Proprietary) Limited
134,006
(6,316,358)
278,915
(6,506,351)
Mobile Telecommunication Limited
675,875
Namibia Water Corporation Limited
(1,033,912)
(1,392,924)
New Era
(205,606)
(179,081)
Road Fund Administration
(131,980)
(222,153)
Telecom Namibia Limited
(3,133,167)
(4,132,295)
Municipality of Walvis Bay
(54,499)
(77,086)
Roads Contractor Company Limited
(32,204)
(53,844)
TransNamib Holdings Limited
(1,963)		
(58,058)
City of Windhoek
(2,465,185)		
Erongo Regional Electricity Distributor (Pty) Limited
(867,559)		
Keetmanshoop Municipality
(220,083)		
Nored Electricity
(351,540)		
Ondangwa Town Council
(1,976,190)
														
The transactions above were made on commercial terms and conditions.
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20.1 Changes in key management as at the date of this report
• Mr. B. Biwa appointed as Chief Executive Officer effective 01 December 2011, suspended on 07 November 2012
and resigned on 08 March 2013.											
• Mr. T.S. El-Kallawi appointed as GM: Finance, IT and Supply Chain effective 01 June 2012 and appointed Acting
Chief Executive Officer effective 08 November 2012.
• Mr. M.C wa Kamau appointed as GM: Operation and Engineering effective 01 June 2012.					
• Mrs. V.M. Kambarami appointed as Company Secretary effective 01 July 2012.						
• Mr. O. Hamwele appointed as GM: Human Resources effective 01 July 2012.					
		
Restated
Restated
							31 March 2013		31 March 2012		31 August 2010
								
N$			
N$			
N$

21. Income tax paid												
Opening balance receivable/(payable)
(11,944,555)
(11,944,555)
5,944,982
Charge for the year
(17,889,537)
Paid during the year
17,944,555
Closing balance (payable)/receivable
(11,944,555)
														

22. Commitments												

Operating lease commitments											
		
The future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:						
							
Not later than 1 year
2,498,030
2,204,606
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
1,530,921
3,875,714
4,028,951
6,080,320
														
Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date for land, buildings and runways, but not recognised in the financial
statements amounts to N$126,325,305. At year-end the value of capital expenditure approved by the board of directors amounts to
N$687,440,125. The planned expenditure will be financed from working capital generated within the Company and from financing
activities.

23. Risk management
Capital risk management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders as well as maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
Financial instruments
Credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was:
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

39,048,095
42,946,853
356,635,400
278,874,469
395,683,495
321,821,322		
														
The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets at the reporting date by type of counterpart was:		
The company’s largest customer, Air Namibia, accounts for N$20,392 million of trade and other receivables as at 31 March 2013
(31 March 2012: N$ 26.799 million).
The financial institutions the company invested with are as follows:
Bank Windhoek Limited
First National Bank of Namibia Limited
Sanlam Namibia Trust Managers Limited
Old Mutual Investment Group (Namibia) Limited

894,295
301,681,960
27,200,066
26,807,079
356,583,400

15,463,657
212,409,377
25,409,115
25,473,118
278,755,267
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The ageing of trade receivables and allowance for impairment losses at the reporting date are as follows:			
							31 March 2013			
31 March 2012		
							
N$					
N$
Gross
Impairment
Gross
Impairment
1-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
91-120 days
120 plus days

15,142,529
327,582
12,287,171
10,425,285
290,753
11,415,597
8,525,631
285,274
9,902,654
1,267,645
268,270
7,209,862
998,492
23,966,669
19,602,142
16,453,938
13,265,404
59,327,759
20,774,021
57,269,222
14,263,896
														
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of loans and:
receivables during the year was as follows
			
31 March 2013
31 March 2012
		
									
N$			N$
										
Opening Balance			
17,821,371
16,822,871
Impairment loss recognised			
6,510,125
998,500
Closing Balance			
24,331,496
17,821,371
Apart from the aforementioned no other impairment is necessary in respect of trade and other receivables.			
Liquidity risk												
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact
of netting agreements:												
Trade and other payables												

Carrying
Contractual
Less than
Between 2
More than 5
amount
cash flows
1 year
and 5 years
years
N$
N$
N$
N$
N$
														
31 March 2013
29,881,102
(29,881,102)
29,881,102
31 March 2012
38,190,699
(38,190,699)
38,190,699
														
The carrying amount of financial liabilities represents the maximum exposure to liquidity risk, which at the reporting date was:

-

		
31 March 2013
31 March 2012
		
N$
N$
														
Trade and other payables
29,881,102
38,190,699
														
Currency risk												
The Company has no material exposure to foreign currency risk due to the fact that future cash flows from financial instruments is not
dependent on changes in foreign currency rates. The overwhelming majority of transactions are executed in Namibia Dollar.
Interest rate risk													
The Company’s interest rate profile of interest-bearing financial instruments was:						
							
		
31 March 2013
31 March 2012											
		
N$
N$
Variable rate instruments											
Financial assets
395,683,495
321,821,322
		
395,683,495
321,821,322 		
														

50
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

23. Risk management continued

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments							
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.								
						
N$
31 March 2013
Variable rate instruments
31 March 2012
Variable rate instruments

Profit or loss				
Equity			
100 bp increase
100 bp decrease
100 bp increase
100 bp decrease
N$
N$
N$
N$
3,956,835

(3,956,835)

3,956,835

(3,956,835)		

3,218,213

(3,218,213)

3,218,213

(3,218,213)		

Fair values
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position, are
as follows:												

N$
Assets carried at fair value
Unit trust balances
Assets carried at amortised cost
Bank balances
Cash on hand
Trade and other receivables

31 March 2013		
31 March 2012				
Carrying amount
Fair value
Carrying amount
Fair value
N$
N$
N$
N$

73,478,113

73,478,113

68,960,134

283,105,287
52,000
39,048,095
322,205,382

283,105,287
52,000
39,048,095
322,205,382

209,795,133
119,202
42,946,853
252,861,188

68,960,134

209,795,133
119,202
42,946,853		
252,861,188		

Liabilities carried at amortised cost					
Trade and other payables
29,881,102
29,881,102
38,190,699
38,190,699		

The basis for determining fair values is disclosed in note 3.								
					
			
31 March 2013
31 March 2012
24. Retirement benefit plans			N$
N$
					
								
24.1 Defined benefit plan												
Company’s share of fair value plan assets			
Present value of obligations			
Unrecognised net gain/(loss)			
Surplus/(deficit) in the plan prior to IAS 19 paragraph 58 limitation		
Unrecognised due to paragraph 58			
Surplus/(deficit) in the plan			

–
-

97,980,000
(78,353,000)
(5,112,000)
14,515,000
(14,515,000)
-

The Company makes contributions to the Government Institutions Pension Fund (GIPF), a defined benefit plan governed by the
Pension Fund Act. The fund provides pension benefits for employees upon retirement. The fund is a pooled defined benefit pension
fund and the Company is a full participating employer. No disclosure was made in the prior year as no actuarial valuation was
performed for the Company’s portion of the fund.
The fair value of plan assets is not recognised as employers are not entitled to a contribution holiday or reimbursement using any
surplus within the fund. Surplus benefits of surplus funds are passed to the employers at the discretion of the trustees in the form of
steady fund contributions, provided employers remain members of the fund.
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24.1 Defined benefit plan continued

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations
			
31 March 2013
31 March 2012
			N$
N$
														
Fair value of plan assets at 1 September			
Recognised net pension expenses			
(1,584,000)
Contributions paid by employer			
8,961,000
Unrecognised liability/(Asset) due to Paragraph 58			
(7,377,000)
Fair value of plan assets at 31 March			
-

Expense not recognised in profit or loss

Current service costs			
Interest costs			
Expected return on plan assets			
Contributions paid by employer			
Unrecognised liability/(Asset) due to Paragraph 58			
Fair value of plan assets at 31 March			

-

10,834,000
12,731,000
(21,981,000)
1,584,000

Company’s share of fair value plan assets			
Present value of obligations			
Unrecognised net gain/(loss)			
Surplus/(deficit) in the plan prior to IAS 19 paragraph 58 limitation		
Unrecognised due to paragraph 58			
Surplus/(deficit) in the plan			

-

14,515,000
(14,515,000)
(5,112,000)
(5,112,000)
(14,515,000)
(19,627,000)

Actuarial assumptions
Principal assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:
Discount rate			
Inflation rate			
Salary increase rate			
Investment return			
Pension increase			

9.00%
8.00%
9.50%
12.00%
5.00%

9.50%
6.00%
7.00%
12.00%
5.00%

24.2 Defined contribution provident benefits								
The company established the Namibia Airports Company Provident Fund on 01 April 2012. The Fund is a defined contribution fund
for all qualifying employees. The total expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income represents the contributions
payable to the Fund at the rate of 16% of pensionable remuneration. Employees contribute to the fund at a rate of 7% for nonmanagement staff and 9% for management staff of pensionable remuneration.						
						
The total value of the contributions to the pension fund during the year amounted to:					
Employee contributions			
4,078,211
Employee contributions			
1,882,399
Total contributions for the period			
5,960,610
Although the statutory actuarial valuation was not performed due to the fact that the fund was only established on 01 April 2012, the
fund is in a sound financial position. The actuaries have been appointed and therefore the first statutory actuarial valuation will be
performed before 2016 as per requirements of the Pension Act, 1956, as amended. 						
							

25 Contingent liabilities										

25.1 Restructuring process - retirement obligation								
During the year ended 31 March 2012 the Company underwent a restructuring process and affected employees claimed money from
the GIPF Retirement Fund. As this fund is established for the purposes of retired employees, GIPF Retirement Fund is now claiming
that NAC should pay the amount due to these former employees. This labour matter faced by NAC is a possible obligation that could
lead to a possible loss of N$26 million. The matter is pending and will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of the
outcome of the arbitration process, which is not wholly within the control of the entity.					
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24.1 Defined benefit plan continued

25.2 Litigations											
The company is a defendant in various legal actions. In the opinion of management, after taking appropriate legal advice, the outcome
of some actions might result in a possible loss amounting to the amount claimed plus cost not exceeding N$4.5 million
( 2012: N$ Nil).

26 Events subsequent to reporting date
There have been no material post balance sheet events, which could require disclosure or adjustment to the 31 March 2013 financial
statements.

27. Revised International Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards issued
		 but not effective
International Accounting Standard 8 requires that when an entity has not applied a new standard or interpretation that has been issued
but is not yet effective the entity shall disclose this fact along with information on the nature and impact of the relevant standards.
All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their effective date, except for those standards and interpretations that are not
applicable to the entity.

Below is a list of the current standards and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective:
Standard
or		Description				Effective
Implementation
Standard
or		Description	Effective
Implementation Impact
Impactofof
Interpretation							
date		 date		
date		 implementation
Interpretation			
date
Revised IAS 1:
Presentation of
Financial Statements:
Presentation of
Items of Other
comprehensive
Income

The amendments to IAS 1 require that
an entity presents separately the items of
other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if
certain conditions are met from those that
would never be reclassified to profit or loss;
do not change the existing option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in two statements; and change the
title of the statement of comprehensive
income to the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. However, an
entity is still allowed to use other titles.

Annual periods
commencing on
or after 1 April
2012

Financial year
ending 31 March
2013

Presentation
and disclosure
will change
accordingly.

IAS 19: Employee
Benefits: Defined
benefit plans

The amended IAS 19 includes the following
requirements: actuarial gains and losses
are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income; this change will
remove the corridor method and eliminate
the ability for entities to recognise all
changes in the defined benefit obligation
and in plan assets in profit or loss, which
currently is allowed under IAS 19; and
expected return on plan assets recognised
in profit or loss is calculated based on the
rate used to discount the defined benefit
obligation.

Annual periods
commencing
on or after 1
January 2013

Financial year
ending 31 March
2014

The amendment
is expected
to change the
Company’s
accounting policy
from recognising
actuarial gains
and losses in
profit or loss
to recognise
it in other
comprehensive
income.

IAS 32: Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

This amendment will be adopted by NAC for
the first time for its financial reporting period
ending 31 March 2015. This amendment
provides clarity on the application of the
offsetting criteria listed in the current
standard.

Annual periods
commencing
on or after 1
January 2014

Financial year
ending 31 March
2015

The company
cannot reliably
estimate the
impact as at 31
March 2013.

IFRS 7: Disclosures
- Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial
Liabilities
		

This amendment will be adopted by NAC for
the first time for its financial reporting period
ending 31 March 2014. This amendment
sets out the additional disclosure
requirements resulting from the IAS 32
offsetting amendment.

Annual periods
commencing
on or after 1
January 2013

Financial year
ending 31 March
2014

The company
cannot reliably
estimate the
impact as
at 31 March
2013.
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27. Revised International Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards issued but
not effective continued
Standard or		Description	Effective
Interpretation			
date

Implementation
date		

Impact of
implementation

IFRS 9: Financial
instruments Classification and
Measurement

IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes
two primary measurement categories for
financial assets: amortised cost and fair
value. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

Annual periods
commencing
on or after 1
January 2015

Financial year
ending 31 March
2016

The company
cannot reliably
estimate the
impact as at 31
March 2013.

IFRS 9 (2010):
Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 (2010), the classification and
measurement requirements of financial
liabilities are the same as per IAS 39, except
for the following two aspects:

Annual periods
commencing
on or after 1
January 2015

Financial year
ending 31 March
2016

The company
cannot reliably
estimate the
impact as at 31
March 2013.

Annual periods
commencing
on or after 1
January 2013

Financial year
ending 31 March
2014

The company
cannot reliably
estimate the
impact as
at 31 March
2013.

•

Fair value changes for financial liabilities
(other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments) designated at fair value
through profit or loss, that are
attributable to the changes in the
credit risk of the liability will be presented
in other comprehensive income. The
remaining amount of the fair value change
is recognised in profit or loss.
		
• However, if this requirement creates
or enlarges an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss, then the whole fair
value change is presented in profit or
loss. The determination as to whether
such presentation would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch is
made on initial recognition and is not
subsequently reassessed.
•

Under IFRS 9 (2010) derivative liabilities
that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of an unquoted equity instrument
whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at fair value.
IFRS 9 (2010) incorporates the
guidance in IAS 39 dealing with fair value
measurement and accounting for
derivatives embedded in a host contract
that is not a financial asset as well as the
requirements of IFRIC 9 “ Reassessment
of Embedded Derivatives.

IFRS 13: Fair Value
Measurement

IFRS 13 replaces the fair value
measurement guidance contained in
individual IFRS with a single source of fair
value measurement guidance. It defines
fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and sets out disclosure
requirements for fair value measurements.
It explains how to measure fair value when
it is required or permitted by other IFRS.
It does not introduce new requirements to
measure assets or liabilities at fair value, nor
does it eliminate the practicability exceptions
to fair value measurements that currently
exist in certain standards.
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Detailed Statement of Income
												
												
19 months ended
										31 March 2013		31 March 2012
								Notes			 N$			 N$
												
Revenue
5
191,133,177
270,026,332
Other operating income
6
7,537,944
6,278,882
Interest received
8
12,250,002
18,371,280
			
210,921,123
294,676,494
												
Operating expenses		
148,333,524
275,137,994
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
7
49,748,014
71,241,324
Motor vehicle expense		
2,730,008
4,551,565
Municipality fees		
465,030
10,436,674
Insurance		
1,537,751
7,296,159
Licenses		
982,637
1,303,784
Operating lease rentals
7
2,590,472
3,656,961
Protective clothing		
444,246
1,141,948
Repairs and maintenance
7
10,576,273
13,082,944
	Security costs		
2,512,707
2,652,080
	Staff costs
7
64,267,870
145,623,803
Telephone and fax		
2,723,098
3,515,587
Water and electricity		
9,755,419
10,635,165
		
Administrative expenses		
32,405,752
23,439,347
Auditors’ remuneration
7
689,055
1,047,756
Advertising		
1,136,700
1,839,194
Bad debts
7
6,510,125
1,124,870
Bank charges		
187,196
400,604
Bursary		
175,191
Cleaning		
1,157,878
1,733,759
Consulting fees		
8,167,696
5,684,735
Computer expenses		
1,049,181
1,270,633
Directors’ emoluments
10
591,563
1,255,934
Directors’ travelling and accommodation		
624,683
1,153,965
Donations		
200,500
197,000
Emergency exercises		
(3,071)
127,264
Entertainment		
868,863
781,695
Interest paid
8
323,048
447,404
Legal fees		
2,247,583
1,247,433
Medical supplies		
59,511
19,862
Other administrative expenses		
284,595
1,075,035
Penalties, fines and interest		
1,367,443
(774,733)
Postage		
154,299
187,479
	Stationery and printing		
318,643
319,196
Subscriptions		
324,858
375,463
Training - staff		
2,425,304
1,590,425
Transportation - equipment		
67,258
140,385
Travel and accommodation		
3,477,650
2,193,988
			
Profit/(Loss) before tax		
30,181,847
(3,900,848)
									
(This statement is unaudited and does not form part of the annual financial statements)						
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